

# APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP OF THE VICTORIAN CLIMBING CLUB INCORPORATED

of

(Name/s)

# (Address)

hereby apply for ordinary, concession, family, affiliate (delete as appropriate) membership of the Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated. I certify that I am at least 16 years of age and in the event of my admission as a member I agree to be bound by the Rules of that Incorporated Association for the time being in force.

Before you sign and send in your membership application form, we would like you to read and understand the following Safety Warnings:

- Climbing is an intrinsically dangerous activity. You could be seriously injured or killed, even by events beyond your control, by taking part in climbing activities.
- Climbing is a team activity. It is typical for people with whom you are climbing to hold your life in their hands (e.g. belaying). Only climb with people you trust. If you are not sure then don't climb.
- The safety issues relevant to climbing outdoors are totally different to those involved with indoor gym climbing. VCC encourages the use of safe climbing practices but any climbing you undertake with the Club is at your own risk.
- VCC cannot guarantee your safety on climbing trips or other Club activities. You are personally responsible for your own safety, which includes choosing where and what you climb, what gear you use (whether it's yours or anyone else's), and with whom you climb.
- VCC strongly recommends that you undertake training courses to learn and improve your safety and technical skills. For your own safety, VCC recommends that you wear a helmet when climbing, belaying, or anywhere near a cliff.
- It is a requirement that all participants on Club trips wear helmets at all times whilst climbing or belaying, or whenever above or below a cliff. No persons who are under the influence of alcohol are permitted to participate.
- Any advice or recommendation on climbing equipment given to you by VCC is not to be taken as any warranty that the equipment is fit for the purpose of climbing or of the performance of the equipment.
- In participating in VCC activities of any type the Club accepts no responsibility for the above or for the acts, omissions or defaults of any of its members or other persons.

If you feel uncomfortable about any of the above, the answer is simple – do not climb! We do not mean to frighten you off; we just want to make sure that you understand the risks involved and are prepared to accept personal responsibility for these risks.

I have read and fully understand the above Safety Warnings and accept that I assume all responsibility associated with these risks of climbing on trips organised by VCC and other VCC activities.

Signature of Applicant/s

Signature of parent or guardian if applicant is under 18

Date

Please turn to page 2 to complete the form



Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated ABN 99 197 923 160 Registration Number: A7284Z GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001 info@vicclimb.org.au http://vicclimb.org.au/ Details for Membership Register

Name/s:			
Postal Address:			
Suburb/Town:			
State & Postcode:			
Contact Phone Numbers:	(H)		
	(W)		
	(M)		
Email:			
By default you will receive the full colour email eArgus. I wish to receive the black & white, hardcopy version instead:			
Please let me know about future CliffCare work parties:			
Payment Details			
The following annual subscription fees apply and include GST:			
Ordinary	□ \$74.00		
Concession Please enclose copy of relevant student or l	benefit card 🛛 \$55.50		
Family Please list all family members' names above	_		
Affiliate	LJ \$148.00		
I would also like to make a donation to the CliffCare Fund: DONATIONS OF \$2 OR MORE ARE TAX DEDUCTIBLE	\$		
Total payment - cheque/money order/credit card (details b	below): \$		
Credit card details – PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY:			
Charge my:			
Credit card number://			
Expiry date:/ Amo	ount of payment: \$		
Name on card:(Please print)			
Signature:	Date:		

**Post to:** The Treasurer, Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated, GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001 **Do not email credit card information. For online applications, see http://vicclimb.org.au/join/** 



Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated ABN 99 197 923 160 Registration Number: A7284Z GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001 info@vicclimb.org.au http://vicclimb.org.au/

# VCC Membership

Thank you for your enquiry about membership of the VCC.

Enclosed you will find a copy of the Club Rules, our Privacy Policy, Trip Participants' Guidelines, and a Membership Application Form.

As a member of the VCC you will:

- 1. Support our work to preserve the cliff environment and keep cliffs open.
- 2. Receive eleven copies of the Club newsletter, *Argus*, each year. Without *Argus* you'll be missing out on new route info and all the latest news on the Victorian climbing scene.
- 3. Obtain discounts at most climbing gyms.
- 4. Obtain discounts at most climbing/outdoor shops in the city and suburbs.
- 5. Have the opportunity to participate in Club trips to both popular and lesser-known crags led by people who know where the good routes are.
- 6. Be able to attend Club Meets, held about 6 times a year at various locations. Keep an eye on the Events page of our web site (<u>www.vicclimb.org.au</u>) for details of the next Club.
- 7. Be able to purchase guidebooks at substantial reductions on the recommended retail price.
- 8. Be able to attend intensive "Learn to Lead" courses for beginners.

Membership types are ordinary, concession, family and affiliate – please check the Qualifications of Membership in Rule 3 to determine the appropriate membership type for you.

To join simply complete the Membership Application and post it with your payment or credit card details to GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001.

We look forward to welcoming you as a member of the Club and meeting you at a Club event very soon.

Yours sincerely Victorian Climbing Club

Cameron Abraham President

# RULES OF THE VICTORIAN CLIMBING CLUB INCORPORATED, 2014

As amended at Special General Meetings on 24<sup>th</sup> September 1998 and 25<sup>th</sup> February 1999, and Annual General Meetings on 31<sup>st</sup> May 2001, 30<sup>th</sup> May 2002, 31<sup>st</sup> May 2007, 25<sup>th</sup> June 2009, 21<sup>st</sup> September 2011, 19th September 2013 and 11th September 2014

Contents

NAME	2
OBJECTS	2
INTERPRETATION	2
QUALIFICATIONS OF MEMBERSHIP	2
MEMBERSHIP FEES	3
PRIVILEGES	3
REGISTER OF MEMBERS	3
RESIGNATION AND EXPULSION OF MEMBER	3
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING	4
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING	4
NOTICE OF MEETING	4
PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS	4
COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT	5
ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND VACANCIES	5
PROCEEDINGS OF COMMITTEE	6
SECRETARY	6
TREASURER	6
REMOVAL OF MEMBER OF COMMITTEE	6
CHEQUES	6
SEAL	6
ALTERATION OF RULES AND STATEMENT OF PURPOSE	7
NOTICES	7
LIABILITY	7
PUBLICITY	7
ACCIDENTS	7
TRUSTEES	7
DISSOLUTION	7
CUSTODY AND INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS	7
FUNDS	7
NOT FOR PROFIT	7
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	8
CONFLICT OF INTEREST	8
APPENDIX 1	9
APPENDIX 2	9

#### NAME

1. The name of the incorporated association is the Victorian Climbing Club (in these Rules called "the Association").

#### OBJECTS

1A. The objects of the Association are:

- (a) to encourage and develop climbing and allied activities;
- (b) to make provision for the participation of members in such activities;
- (c) to promote protection and enhancement of the natural environment related to climbing and allied activities;
- (d) the provision of information and education about the natural environment related to climbing and allied activities; and
- (e) to set up a public fund, called the CliffCare Fund, under the constitution and Rules of the Association and in compliance with subdivision 30-E of the *Income Tax Assessment Act* 1997, to accept gifts and donations for the specific purposes of:
  - organising and promoting practical activities which assist in the protection and enhancement of the natural environment where this relates to the undertaking of climbing and allied activities;
  - (ii) providing information and educational programs designed to influence the behaviour of those who participate in climbing and allied activities in ways which promote the protection of the natural environment.

The CliffCare Fund shall operate under a properly constituted CliffCare Trust of which the Association shall be the sole Trustee.

Any allocation of funds or property from the CliffCare Fund to other organisations or persons will be made in accordance with the purposes of the CliffCare Fund and will not be influenced by the expressed preference or interest of a particular donor to the Fund, and in the administration of the fund no action shall be taken that could in any way be construed as acting as a mere conduit for the donation of money or property to other organisations or persons.

#### INTERPRETATION

2. (1) In these Rules, unless the contrary intention appears:

"Committee" means the Committee of Management of the Association.

"Financial Year" means the year ending 30 June.

"General Meeting" means a general meeting of members convened in accordance with Rule 11.

"Member" means a member of the Association.

"Ordinary Member of the Committee" means a member of the Committee who is not an officer of the Association under Rule 21.

"The Act" means the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012.

"The Regulations" means regulations under the Act.

(2) Words or expressions contained in these Rules shall be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Acts Interpretation Act 1958 and the Act in force from time to time.

#### QUALIFICATIONS OF MEMBERSHIP

- 3. (1) Membership of the Association may be one of the following types:
  - (a) ordinary
  - (b) concession
  - (c) family
  - (d) honorary life
  - (e) affiliate
  - (2) Ordinary membership shall be open to any natural person who is at least 16 years of age.
  - (3) Concession membership shall be open to any natural person who is at least 16 years of age, not in full-time employment and is a student, senior, self-funded retiree, Government benefit recipient or who meets any criteria as determined by the Committee.
  - (4) Family membership shall be open to any bona fide family group including not more than two persons over the age of 18. All members of a family that is a member of the Association shall give the same address for recording with the Association's register of members.
  - (5) The Committee may appoint any member an Honorary Life Member of the Association subject to approval by a majority vote of an Annual General Meeting of the Association.
  - (6) Affiliated membership shall be open to any bona fide club, society, or association involved in rockclimbing.
  - (7) An applicant for membership of the Association shall:
    - (a) lodge the application in the form set out in Appendix 1.
    - (b) lodge the appropriate fee with the Treasurer or Secretary.
    - (c) comply with the provisions of these Rules.
    - (d) in the case of an application for Concession membership, submit a copy of relevant student or benefit card, or other evidence as determined by the Committee.

An application from a person aged between 16 and 18 years must be signed by a parent or guardian.

- (8) The Treasurer shall upon receipt of the membership fee and the application for membership in the form shown in Appendix 1 enter the applicant's name on the register of members kept by him or her. Upon being so entered, the applicant becomes a member of the Association.
- (9) The Committee may reject any application for membership within 40 days of the application being made. If any application is rejected, the Treasurer shall return the membership fee to the applicant within 14 days and remove the applicants name from the register of members of the Association.
- (10) A right, privilege, or obligation of a person by reason of his or her membership of the Association:
  - (a) is not capable of being transferred or transmitted to another person;
  - (b) terminates upon the cessation of his or her membership whether by death or resignation or otherwise.

#### **MEMBERSHIP FEES**

4

- (1) Annual subscription fees shall be determined at each Annual General Meeting.
  - (2) The subscription fee payable by a new member shall be for the year commencing on the day the member becomes a member of the Club.
  - (3) The subscription fee payable each year by a member shall be for the year commencing on the anniversary of the day the member became a member of the Club.
  - (4) Any member who has not paid his or her subscription fee for one month after the date on which the subscription fee becomes due shall be deemed to be unfinancial and shall cease to be member.
  - (5) Any ordinary or family member may pre-pay subscription fees up to three years in advance at the rate applicable for the current year.

# PRIVILEGES

- 5. (1) Members of the club, as defined in clause 3. (1) (a) (b) (c) (d), shall be entitled to:
  - (a) The use of all the facilities and privileges provided by the Club;
  - (b) Vote for the election of officers and committee of the Club;
  - (c) Stand for election to office or to the committee of the Club.
  - (2) Affiliate members of the club shall be entitled to:
    - (a) Official representation with full speaking and voting rights at all Annual and Special General Meetings;
    - (b) Each affiliate member to be allowed a maximum two (2) official delegates, to be nominated by the affiliate on joining the club;
    - (c) Such delegate may stand for election as ordinary members of the Committee, or any other none Committee positions within the Club, but may not stand for the four (4) officer positions specified under clause 21.(1);
    - (d) Each affiliate member is to receive one copy of every issue of Argus, and have limited access to guide books at member prices.

#### **REGISTER OF MEMBERS**

6.

- (1) The Treasurer shall keep and maintain a register in which shall be entered the full name, address, date of entry, and date to which subscription fees are paid of each member and the register shall be available for inspection at a reasonable time.
  - (2) Upon the membership of any person terminating, the Treasurer shall make in the register of members an entry recording the date on which the member ceased to be a member.
  - (3) Members can write to the Secretary to ask that the Treasurer restrict access to their details on the members register if they have special circumstances. The Secretary will decide if there are special circumstances, and will write to the member outlining their decision.

#### **RESIGNATION AND EXPULSION OF MEMBER**

- 7. (1) A member of the Association who has paid all money due and payable to him or her to the Association may resign from the Association by first giving one month's notice in writing to the Secretary of his or her intention to resign and upon the expiration of that period of notice, the member shall cease to be a member.
  - (2) Upon the expiration of notice given under sub-clause (1), the Secretary shall make in the register of members an entry recording the date on which the member by whom the notice was given, ceased to be a member.
  - (3) Subject to these Rules the Committee may by resolution expel a member from the Association if the Committee is of the opinion that the member has:
    - (a) refused or neglected to comply with these Rules;
    - (b) has been guilty of conduct unbecoming to a member or prejudicial to the interests of the Association.
  - (4) A resolution of the Committee under sub-clause (3):
    - (a) does not take effect unless the Committee, at a meeting held not earlier than 14 and not later than 28 days after the service on the member of a notice under sub-clause (5) confirms the resolution in accordance with this clause; and
    - (b) where the member exercises a right of appeal to the Association under this clause does not take effect unless the Association confirms the resolution in accordance with this clause.
  - (5) Where the Committee passes a resolution under sub-clause (3), the Secretary shall, as soon as practicable, cause to be served on the member a notice in writing:
    - (a) setting out the resolution of the Committee and the grounds on which it is based;
    - (b) stating that the member may address the Committee at a meeting to be held not earlier than 14 and not later than 28 days after service of the notice;
    - (c) stating the date, place and time of that meeting;
    - (d) informing the member that he or she may do one or more of the following:
      - (i) Attend that meeting
      - (ii) Give to the Committee before the date of that meeting a written statement seeking the revocation of the resolution.
      - (iii) Not later than 24 hours before the date of the meeting, lodge with the Secretary a notice to the effect that he or she wishes to appeal to the Association in general meeting against the resolution.
  - (6) At a meeting of the Committee held in accordance with sub-clause (4), the Committee:
    - (a) shall give to the member an opportunity to be heard;
    - (b) shall give due consideration to any written statement submitted by the member; and
    - (c) shall by resolution determine whether to confirm or to revoke the resolution.
  - (7) Where the Secretary receives a notice under sub-clause (5), he or she shall notify the Committee and the Committee shall convene a general meeting of the Association to be held within 21 days after the date on which the Secretary received the notice.
  - (8) At a general meeting of the Association convened under sub-clause (7):

- (a) the Committee may place before the meeting details on the grounds for the resolution and the reasons for the passing of the resolution;
- (b) the member shall be given the opportunity to be heard; and
- (c) the members present shall vote by secret ballot on the question whether the resolution should be confirmed or revoked.
- (9) If at the general meeting:
  - (a) two-thirds of the members vote in person or by proxy in favour of the confirmation of the resolution is confirmed; and
  - (b) in any other case, the resolution is revoked.

#### ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- . (1) The Association shall in each calendar year convene an annual general meeting of its members within 3 months of the end of each financial Year.
  - (2) The annual general meeting shall be held on such day as the Committee determines.
  - (3) The annual general meeting shall be specified as such in the notice convening it.
  - (4) The ordinary business of the annual general meeting shall be:
    - (a) to confirm the minutes of the last preceding annual general meeting and of any general meeting held since that meeting.
    - (b) to receive from the Committee reports upon the transaction of the Association during the past preceding financial year.
    - (c) to elect officers of the Association and the ordinary members of the Committee: and
    - (d) to receive and consider the financial statements submitted by the Association in accordance with the Act.
    - (e) to consider the following year's subscription fee.
  - (5) The annual general meeting may transact special business of which notice is given in accordance with these Rules.
  - (6) No business other than that set out in the notice convening the meeting shall be transacted at the annual general meeting.
  - (7) The annual general meeting shall be in addition to other general meetings which may be held during the year.

#### SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

- 9. All general meetings other than the annual general meeting shall be called special general meetings.
- 10. (1) The Committee may, whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting of the Association and, where, but for this sub-clause, more than 15 months would lapse between annual general meetings, shall convene a special general meeting before the expiration of that period.
  - (2) The Committee shall, on the requisition in writing of members representing not less than 5% of the total number of members, convene a special general meeting of the Association.
  - (3) The requisition for a special general meeting shall state the objects of the meeting and shall be signed by the members making the requisition and be sent to the address of the Secretary and may consist of several documents in a like form, each signed by one or more of the members making the resolution.
  - (4) If the Committee does not cause a special general meeting to be held within 6 weeks after the date on which the requisition is s sent to the address of the Secretary, the members making the requisition, or any of them, may convene a special general meeting to be held not later than 3 months after the date.
  - (5) A special general meeting convened by members in pursuance of these Rules shall be convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which those meeting are convened by the Committee and all reasonable expenses incurred in convening the meeting shall be refunded by the Association to the persons incurring the expenses.

### NOTICE OF MEETING

- 11. (1) The secretary of the Association shall, at least 14 days before the date fixed for holding a general meeting, notify each member of the place, date and time of the meeting by a method of notice listed in Rule 32 (1).
  - (2) A member desiring to bring any business before a meeting may:
    - (a) Give notice of that business in writing to the secretary who shall include that business in the notice of calling the next general meeting after the receipt of the notice.
    - (b) At a meeting other than the Annual General Meeting, a member may raise any item of business.

#### **PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS**

- 12. (1) All business that is transacted at a special general meeting and all business that is transacted at the annual general meeting with the exception of that specially referred to in these Rules as being the ordinary business of the annual general meeting shall be deemed to be special business.
  - (2) No item of business shall be transacted at the general meeting unless a quorum of members entitled under these Rules to vote is present during the time when meeting in considering that item.
  - (3) 5 members present either in person or through the use of technology (such as phone or video conferencing) (being members entitled under these Rules to vote at a general meeting) constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of a general meeting.
  - (4) If within half an hour after the appointed time for the commencement of a general meeting, a quorum is not present the meeting if convened upon the requisition of members shall be dissolved and in any other case shall stand adjourned the same day in the next week at the same time and (unless another place is specified by the Chairman at the time of the adjournment or by written notice to the members given before the day in which the meeting is adjourned) at the same place and if at the adjourned meeting the quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the commencement of the meeting, the members present (being not less that 3) shall be a quorum.
- 13. (1) The President or in his/her absence, the Vice-President, shall preside as Chairman at each general meeting of the Association.
  - (2) If the President and Vice-President are both absent from a general meeting, the Committee of Management may nominate one of their number to chair the meeting. If the President and Vice-President are absent from a general meeting and the Committee of Management has not nominated one of their number to chair the meeting, the members shall elect one of their number to act as Chairman for the meeting.

- 14. (1) The Chairperson of a general meeting at which a quorum is present may, with the consent of the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and place to place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting at which the adjournment took place.
  - (2) Where a meeting is adjourned for 14 days or more, a like notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of a general meeting.
  - (3) Except as provided in sub-clauses (1) and (2), it is not necessary to give notice of an adjourned meeting.
- 15. A question arising at a general meeting of the Association shall be determined on a show of hands and unless before or on the declaration of the show of hands a poll is demanded, a declaration by the Chairperson that a resolution has, on a show of hands, been carried or carried unanimously or carried by a particular majority or lost, and an entry to that effect in the Minute Book of the Association is evidence of the vote without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of, or against, that resolution.
- 16. (1) Upon any question arising at a general meeting of the Association, an ordinary, concession, or life membership entitles the holder to one vote only. Family membership entitles the two adult members of the family group to one vote each.
  - (2) All votes shall be given personally or by proxy.
  - (3) In the case of an equality of voting on a question, the Chairperson of the meeting is entitled to exercise a second or casting vote.
  - (4) If at a meeting a poll on any question is demanded by not less than three members, it shall be taken at that meeting in such a manner as the Chairperson may direct and the resolution of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of the meeting on that question.
  - (5) A poll that is demanded on the election of a Chairperson or on a question of an adjournment shall be taken forthwith and a poll that is demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time before the close of the meeting as the Chairperson may direct.
- 17. A member is not entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all moneys due and payable by him or her to the Association have been paid, other than the amount of the annual subscription payable in respect of the current financial year.
- 18. Each member shall be entitled to appoint another member as his or her proxy by notice given to the Secretary not later than 24 hours before the time of the meeting in respect of which the proxy is appointed. The notice appointing the proxy shall be in the form set out in Appendix 2.
- 19. Visitors may attend up to three general meetings as guests of the Club. If after attending three meetings a non-member has not applied for membership of the Club he or she may, at the discretion the Chairperson or President, be asked not to attend future meetings.

# COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT

- 20. (1) The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Committee of Management constituted as provided in Rule 21.
  - (2) The Committee:
    - (a) shall control and manage the business and affairs of the Association;
    - (b) may, subject to these Rules, the regulations and the Act, exercise all such powers and functions as may be exercised by the Association other than those powers and functions that are required by these Rules to be exercised by general meetings of the members of the Association; and
    - (c) subject to these Rules, the regulations and the Act, has power to perform all such acts and things as appear to the Committee to be essential for the proper management of the business and affairs of the Association.
- 21. (1) The officers of the Association shall be:
  - (a) A President;
  - (b) A Vice-President;
  - (c) A Treasurer; and
  - (d) A Secretary.
  - (2) The provisions of Rule 23 so far as they are applicable and with the necessary modification, apply to and in relation to the election of persons to any of the offices mentioned in sub-clause (1).
  - (3) Each officer of the Association shall hold office until the annual general meeting next after the date of his or her election but is eligible for re-election.
  - (4) In the event of a casual vacancy in any office referred to in sub-clause (1), the Committee may appoint one of its members to the vacant office and the member so appointed may continue in office up to and including the conclusion of the annual general meeting next following the date of his or her appointment.
- 22. (1) Subject to section 23 of the Act, the Committee shall consist of:
  - (a) the officers of the Association; and
    - (b) at least 1, and no more than 7, Ordinary members each of whom shall be elected at the annual general meeting of the Association in each year.
  - (2) Each ordinary member of the Committee shall, subject to these Rules, hold office until the annual general meeting next after the date of his or her election but is eligible for re-election.
  - (3) In the event of a casual vacancy occurring in the office of an ordinary member of the Committee, the Committee may appoint a member of the Association to fill the vacancy and the member so appointed shall hold office, subject to these Rules, until the conclusion of the annual general meeting next following the date of his or her appointment.

#### **ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND VACANCIES**

- 23. (1) Nomination of candidates for election as officers of the Association or as ordinary committee members:
  - (a) may be made in writing, signed by the written consent of the candidate and shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Association not less than 7 days before the date fixed for the holding of the annual general meeting.
    - (b) may be made from the floor at the annual general meeting prior to the election. Each nomination must be seconded by another member and approved by the nominee.
  - (2) If insufficient nominations are received to fill all vacancies of the Committee, the candidates nominated shall be deemed to be elected and vacant positions shall be treated as casual vacancies as described in clause 21 (4) and 22 (3).

- (3) If the number of nominations is equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, the persons nominated shall be deemed to be elected.
- (4) If the number of nominations exceeds the number of vacancies to be filled, a ballot shall be held.
- (5) The ballot for the election of officers and ordinary members of the Committee shall be conducted at the annual general meeting in such usual and proper manner as the Committee may direct.
- (6) A member may not hold more than one committee or office position.
- 24. For the purpose of these Rules, the office of an officer of the Association or of an ordinary member of the Committee becomes vacant if the officer or member:
  - (a) ceases to be a member of the Association;
  - (b) becomes an insolvent under administration within the meaning of the Corporations Act; or
  - (c) resigns his or her office by notice in writing given to the Secretary.

#### **PROCEEDINGS OF COMMITTEE**

- 25. (1) The Committee shall meet at least three times in each year at such place and such times as the Committee may determine.
  - (2) Special meeting of the Committee may be convened by the President or by any four of the members of the Committee.
  - (3) Notice shall be given to members of the Committee of any special meeting specifying the general nature of the business to be transacted.
  - (4) Any four members of the Committee constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of a meeting of the Committee.
  - (5) No business shall be transacted unless a quorum is present and if within one hour of the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present the meeting shall stand adjourned to a date to be nominated by those present, unless it is a special general meeting in which case the meeting lapses.
  - (6) At meeting of the Committee:
    - (a) the President or in his or her absence the Vice-President shall preside; or
    - (b) if the President and the Vice-President are absent, such one of the remaining members of the Committee as may be chosen by the members shall preside.
  - (7) Questions arising at a meeting of the Committee or sub-committee appointed by the Committee shall be determined on a show of hands, or if demanded by a member, by a poll taken in such manner as the person presiding at the meeting may determine.
  - (8) Each member present at a meeting of the Committee or of any sub-committee appointed by the Committee (including the person presiding at the meeting) is entitled to one vote and, in the event of an equality of votes on any question, the person presiding may exercise a second or casting vote.
  - (9) Written notice of each committee meeting shall be served on each member of the Committee by delivering it to him or her at a reasonable time before the meeting or by sending it by email, or by pre-paid post addressed to him or her at his or her usual or last known place of abode at least two business days before the date of the meeting.
  - (10) Subject to sub-clause (4) the Committee may act notwithstanding any vacancy on the Committee.
  - (11) Committee Members may attend meetings through technology (such as phone or video conferencing) so long as everyone can hear and be heard at the same time.

#### SECRETARY

- 26. (1) The Secretary of the Association shall keep minutes of the resolutions and proceedings of each general meeting and each committee meeting in books provided for that purpose together with a record of the names of persons present at committee meetings.
  - (2) The Secretary must be over 18 years of age, and live in Australia.
  - (3) If the Secretary stops living in Australia, they cannot remain the Secretary.
  - (4) If the Secretary stops being the Secretary, the Committee must appoint a new Secretary within 14 days.

#### TREASURER

- 27. (1) The Treasurer of the Association:
  - (a) shall collect and receive all monies due to the Association and make all payments authorised by the Association: and
  - (b) shall keep correct accounts and books showing the financial affairs of the Association with full details of all receipts and expenditure connected with the activities of the Association.

#### **REMOVAL OF MEMBER OF COMMITTEE**

- 28. (1) The Association in general meeting may by resolution remove any member of the Committee before the expiration of his or her term of office and appoint another member in his or her stead to hold office until the expiration of the term of the first-mentioned member.
  - (2) Where the member to whom proposed resolution referred to in sub-clause (1) makes representation in writing to the Secretary or President of the Association (not exceeding a reasonable length) and requests that they be notified to the members of the Association, the Secretary or the President may send a copy of the representations to each member of the Association or, if they are not so sent, the member may require that they be read out at the meeting.

#### CHEQUES

29. All cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, promissory notes and other negotiable instruments shall be signed by two members of the Committee.

#### SEAL

- 30. (1) The Common Seal of the Association shall be kept in the custody of the Secretary.
  - (2) The Common Seal shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of the Committee and the affixing of the Common Seal shall be attested by the signatures of two members of the Committee.

#### ALTERATION OF RULES AND STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

31. These Rules and the statement of purposes of the Association shall not be altered except in accordance with the Act.

#### NOTICES

- 32. (1) A notice may be served by or on behalf of the Association upon any Member by:
  - (a) personal delivery;
  - (b) pre-paid post to the address shown in the register of members;
  - (c) facsimile transmission to the telephone number shown in the register of members; or
  - (d) email transmission to the email address shown in the register of members.
  - (2) Any such notice shall be deemed to be received:
    - (a) if served by personal delivery, at the time of delivery;
    - (b) if served by post, at the time at which the letter would have been delivered in the ordinary course of post;
    - (c) if served by facsimile, at the time of transmission; or
    - (d) if served by email, at the time of transmission.

### LIABILITY

33. The club will not accept liability for any injury to any member or any damage to the property of any member resulting from his or her participation in the Club's activities.

#### PUBLICITY

34. Members shall not communicate with the Press or Government Authorities with respect to Club matters except in the manner to be prescribed by the Committee.

#### ACCIDENTS

35. The Committee shall inquire into all serious accidents involving members and report its findings to the Club.

#### TRUSTEES

36. The property of the Club may be vested jointly in trustees to be appointed from time to time by the Committee.

#### DISSOLUTION

37. In the event of the Association being dissolved, the amount which remains after such dissolution and the satisfaction of all debts and liabilities shall be paid and applied by the Association in accordance with its powers to any organisation which has similar objects and which has Rules prohibiting the distribution of its assets and income to its members.

#### CUSTODY AND INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS

- (1) Except as otherwise provided in these Rules, the Secretary must keep in his or her custody or under his or her control all records, books, documents and securities of the Association.
  - (2) Members may on request inspect free of charge:
    - (a) the register of members;
    - (b) the minutes of general meetings;
    - (c) subject to sub-rule (3), the financial records, books, securities and any other relevant document of the Association, including minutes of Committee meetings.
  - (3) The Committee may refuse to permit a member to inspect records of the Association that relate to confidential, personal, employment, commercial or legal matters or where to do so may be prejudicial to the interests of the Association.
  - (4) The Committee must on request make copies of these rules available to members and applicants for membership free of charge.
  - (5) Subject to sub-rule (3), a member may make a copy of any of the other records of the Association referred to in this rule and the Association may charge a reasonable fee for provision of a copy of such a record.
  - (6) For purposes of this rule:

*relevant documents* means the records and other documents, however compiled, recorded or stored, that relate to the incorporation and management of the Association and includes the following:

- (a) its membership records;
- (b) its financial statements;
- (c) its financial records;
- (d) records and documents relating to transactions, dealings, business or property of the Association.

#### FUNDS

39. The funds of the Association shall be derived from entrance fees, subscriptions, donations and other such sources as the Committee determines.

#### NOT FOR PROFIT

39A. The assets and income of the Association shall be applied exclusively to the promotion of its objects and no portion shall be paid or distributed directly or indirectly to the members of the Association except as bona fide remuneration for services rendered or expenses incurred on behalf of the Association.

#### **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES**

- 40. If there is a dispute between a member and another member, a member and the Association, or a member and the Committee, the parties involved must first attempt to resolve the dispute between themselves for at least 14 days from the date the dispute is known to all parties involved.
- 41. If the dispute cannot be resolved between the people involved, the following grievance procedure must be followed:

- (1) the party with a grievance must write to the Association and any other people affected, and explain what they are unhappy about
- (2) the Committee must appoint an unbiased mediator to hear from all the parties involved and try to find a solution. The Committee must let the people involved know the time and place where the hearing will happen
- (3) at the hearing, each party must have an opportunity to be heard and agrees to do their best to resolve the dispute, and
- (4) the mediator will determine the outcome of the dispute.

# CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 42. (1) A committee member who has a material personal interest in a matter being considered at a committee meeting must disclose the nature and extent of that interest to the Committee.
  - (2) The member:
    - (a) must not be present while the matter is being considered at the meeting; and
    - (b) must not vote on the matter.
  - (3) This rule does not apply to a material personal interest:
    - (a) that exists only because the member belongs to a class of persons for whose benefit the Association is established; or
    - (b) that the member has in common with all, or a substantial proportion of, the members of the Association.

#### **APPENDIX 1**

APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP OF THE VICTORIAN CLIMBING CLUB INCORPORATED

I..... of...... hereby apply for ordinary, student, family, affiliate (delete as appropriate) membership of the Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated. I certify that I am at least 16 years of age and in the event of my admission as a member I agree to be bound by the Rules of that Incorporated Association for the time being in force.

Signature of applicant

Signature of parent or guardian if applicant is under 18

Date.....

#### APPENDIX 2

FORM OF APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

My proxy is authorised to vote in favour of/against (delete as appropriate) the resolution (insert details).

Signed.....

The ......day of......20...



Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated ABN 99 197 923 160 Registration Number: A7284Z GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001 info@vicclimb.org.au http://vicclimb.org.au/

# **Privacy Policy**

# Collection

We will only collect information that is necessary for what we do

The minimum information we will collect is your full name and address. This is the information that we must record in the Register of Members in accordance with our Rules.

Your phone numbers and email address will be requested in order that we may contact you if necessary, but you may withhold that information.

We will be fair in the way we collect information about you

We will only collect personal information by lawful and fair means and not in an unreasonably intrusive way.

We will tell you who we are and what we intend to do with information about you

At or before the time we collect personal information from you, we will take reasonable steps to ensure that you are aware of:

- a) who we are and how to contact us;
- b) the fact that you are able to gain access to the information;
- c) the purposes for which the information is collected; and
- d) to whom we usually disclose information of this kind.

Where it is reasonable and practicable to do so, we will collect personal information directly from you.

If we collect information about you from someone else we will, wherever possible, make sure you know we have done this

# Use and disclosure

We will only use or disclose information about you in ways that are consistent with your expectations or are required in the public interest

Except where the use or disclosure is required or specifically authorised by law, we will only disclose information about you as follows:

- a) in the Register of Members in accordance with Rule 6. This Rule requires the Treasurer to enter the full name, address, date of entry, date to which subscription fees are paid, and the date of termination of each member. The Register is available for inspection at the address of the Public Officer; and
- b) in a list of members that may be published in Argus from time to time. If you indicate at the time of joining the Club, upon renewal of membership, or at any other time by giving advice to the Treasurer, that you do not wish your contact details to be published, we will only publish your name.

# **Data quality**

We will ensure that information about you is accurate when we collect or use it

We will take reasonable steps to make sure that the personal information we collect, use or disclose is accurate, complete and up to date.

#### **Data security**

We will keep information about you secure

We will take reasonable steps to protect the personal information we hold from misuse and loss and from unauthorised access, modification or disclosure.

#### Openness

We will be open with you about what kinds of personal information we hold and what we do with it

#### Access and correction

We will let you see the information we hold about you and correct it if it is wrong

You may at any time upon request to the Treasurer, have access to the information we hold about you and we will correct it if it is wrong.

# Identifiers

We will not use any identifiers that government agencies have assigned to you

# Anonymity

If we can (and you want to) we will deal with you anonymously

#### **Onward transfers of personal information**

We will take steps to protect your privacy if we send personal information about you to a third party

Except where required by law, we will not disclose any information about you to a third party.

In particular, no information will be disclosed to any commercial organisation such as retailers or climbing gyms.

### Sensitive information

We will limit the collection of highly sensitive information about you

We will not collect personal information revealing racial or ethnic origin, political opinions, religious or philosophical beliefs, trade-union membership, or details of health or sex life.



Victorian Climbing Club Incorporated ABN 99 197 923 160 Registration Number: A7284Z GPO Box 1725, MELBOURNE VIC 3001 info@vicclimb.org.au http://vicclimb.org.au/ **Trip Participants Guidelines** 

All Club members are welcome to participate in Club trips that are consistent with their skills and experience. Trips may be listed as appropriate for a certain level – Novice, Intermediate or Advanced.

# For the purposes of VCC trips:

You are a *Novice* climber if...

You can tie yourself in using a figure of eight knot and you have a harness, helmet, suitable footwear, one sling and a screw gate karabiner.

You are an *Intermediate* climber if...

You can tie yourself in using a figure of eight knot plus you can safely belay and second a lead climber, you can abseil and you have a harness, helmet, suitable footwear, several long slings, two screw gate karabiners, nut pick and belay device.

You are an **Advanced** climber if...

You meet the Intermediate criteria plus you can lead climb using traditional gear, you can set up belays on multi pitch climbs and you have all the above mentioned gear plus a rack and a rope.

Contact the trip leader or <u>vccclubtrips@vicclimb.org.au</u> for more details.

Please note that the Club has no gear available for beginners to use. Ropes and protection may be generously provided by the trip leader and other experienced climbers on the trip. All climbers need a helmet and harness which are specifically designed for rock climbing and which adhere to UIAA, CE or equivalent, and climbing shoes.

Due to conditions of the Club's insurance, it is a requirement that all trip participants wear helmets at all times when climbing, belaying, or above or below a cliff. No persons who are under the influence of alcohol are permitted to participate.

If you suffer from any allergies, are taking any medication, or have a pre-existing injury or illness, you *must* inform the Trip Leader.

The Club does not run abseiling trips. Commercial instruction groups can be approached for this.

Anyone who is planning on going on a trip **must** contact the trip leader well before the trip to register. This allows the leader time to organise enough experienced climbers to help out with new climbers on the trip. It also helps in organising transport so no one misses out.

Minors, i.e. anyone under 18 years of age, may attend a Club trip if, and only if, accompanied by a parent or guardian.

All participants (or parent/guardian, in the case of minors) *must* sign the Trip Register before joining a particular trip.

# **Trip Leaders**

Leaders can reject intending participants if the leaders, in their absolute discretion, are not satisfied that those participants have the necessary level of skill and equipment or are otherwise unsuitable.

# Guests

Non-members may attend 2 Club trips as guests, after which they will be required to become members to attend further Club trips.

# Learn to Lead Climb

Club trips are not intended to be instructional. If you are new to climbing and want to get out onto rock and learn to lead climb, one of the VCC courses can teach you the basics to make sure you have fun and get home safely.

Check the website for details.